
  
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  MEETING MINUTES 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING SEPTEMBER 17, 2015 
 

City of Dillingham  September 17, 2015 
Code Review Committee Meeting  Page 2 of 4 

 
Janice Williams reported a majority of clerks also serve as the records manager.  This is 
defined in the job description for the City of Dillingham City Clerk, but not in code.  From 
there a policy can be developed, which will go to the Council for approval after reviewed by 
the Code Review Committee.    
 
MOTION: Rose Loera moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to recommend 

the Council introduce the proposed ordinance.  
 

Discussion ensued: 
 Suggested on the 6th step on the handout to change “regular” to a set time.     

 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   

 
d. C11/14, Provide a Process for Exceptions to DMC 11.08.010 Speed Limit 
 

Janice Williams referred to the recommendations made by the committee which were 
included in the draft ordinance presented.  Manager Loera noted that conversations 
between the State DOT, BBNA, and the City regarding lowering the speed limits on 
Windmill Hill were not going anywhere.    
 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to recommend 

the council introduce the proposed ordinance with the amended language.  
 

VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
e. C15/15, Senior Citizen/Disabled Veterans Exemption on Real Property (This 

will be a handout at the meeting.) 
 

Janice Williams reported the draft ordinance included a deadline for when a senior 
exemption application can be filed as required by State law.  She noted she was having 
difficulties working in the language suggested by the committee, to allow for a deadline of 
Feb. 15, but allow for late filings with an appeal no later than the certification of the tax rolls.  
She noted the State statute provides that a senior can submit a letter stating “good cause” 
why their application was late, which is included in the State statute.     
 
Staff to work on the language for filing late.    
 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to modify the 

ordinance and have it ready to recommend to the Council at their Oct. 15 
meeting. 

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
f. C16/15, Force Filing  - Change the Fee Structure   
 

Management is recommending increasing the force filing fee for the second year and 
requiring an audit the third year if force filing again.    

 

Page 48 of 93



  
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  MEETING MINUTES 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING SEPTEMBER 17, 2015 
 

City of Dillingham  September 17, 2015 
Code Review Committee Meeting  Page 3 of 4 

 
Discussion ensued: 

 Recommend the fine for the second consecutive year of force filing be $250; 
 Recommend the customer being audited share in the cost; suggestions included pay 

a certain percentage or prorate the cost amongst the people being audited;  
 Recommend a formula put in place for aircraft owners who are transient; value of the 

plane divided by the number of days in the year times the number of days on the 
ground in Dillingham.   
 

Follow-up: 
 Contact attorney if allocating a percentage of the taxes owed is allowed.  

 
g. C17/15, Notice of Intent to Award 

 
Discussion ensued over the lowest responsible bidder.   

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to recommend 

the draft ordinance to the Council.   
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   

  
h. C18/15, Marijuana Advisory Committee   

 
The committee recommended amending the proposed resolution by creating a nominating 
committee made up of the Mayor, Manager, and two Council members to select the 
members of the Marijuana Advisory Committee.  The committee would be made up of six 
community members and one Council member who would preside over the committee.  
 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to recommend 

the resolution as amended to the Council for adoption.  
 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   

 
i. C19/15, Review Changing Code to Add Employee Can Run for School Board  

 
This will be brought back on the next agenda for more discussion.   

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Janice Williams noted the items under Unfinished Business, items h and i, should have 
been located under New Business.  

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

 
Rose Loera:  

 Will be recommending to the Council to add to the Code Committee’s Task List to 
add a section to the code on who can inspect personnel records.   
 

 

Page 49 of 93



  
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  MEETING MINUTES 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING SEPTEMBER 17, 2015 
 

City of Dillingham  September 17, 2015 
Code Review Committee Meeting  Page 4 of 4 

 
Holly Johnson: 

 Asked what was an inventory tax. 
 

Tax on inventory is a category listed on the personal property assessment return.  Inventory 
remaining at year end is assessed the tax.  Additional information will be provided at the 
next meeting.  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m.  
 

       __________________________ 
       Chris Maines, Chair 

ATTEST: 
___________________________      
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Approval Date: ___________________________ 

 

Page 50 of 93



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  SEPTEMBER 22, 2015

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  September 22, 2015 
 City of Dillingham   Page 1 of 4 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Finance and Budget Committee met on Tuesday, September 22, 2015, in the City Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Paul Liedberg, Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL 
 
Committee Members present: 

Paul Liedberg   Mayor Alice Ruby    Rose Loera 
Tracy Hightower   Curt Armstrong   Navin Bissram 

 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a.  Minutes of August 17, 2015 
 
MOTION:  Alice Ruby moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to approve the minutes 

of August 17, 2015.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by general consent. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION:  Rose Loera moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to approve the agenda.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by general consent. 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 
 
Navin Bissram reported on the following: 

 In the process of billing around 20-30 personal property owners for escaped tax mainly to 
aircraft owners;  

 A number of businesses fail to provide the detail for exempt sales tax required on their sales 
tax returns and was asking for suggestions for enforcement; 

 Audit field work is scheduled from Oct. 19-22; expect the audited financials the beginning of 
next year, consistent with past years; 

 Recommending a full-time high level accountant be added to the finance dept. staff; an 
existing employee had gone half-time and will continue to work on grant reporting mainly, and 
other items.   
 

Discussion ensued: 
 Review the fine schedule for failure to provide required reporting;  
 Could do a better job helping the stores keep track of exempt sales by providing a log;  
 Communicate to the businesses the need for people to produce an exemption certificate; 

 
Follow-up: 
 Bring back a plan for staffing the finance dept. and related cost.   
 

 

Page 51 of 93



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  SEPTEMBER 22, 2015

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  September 22, 2015 
 City of Dillingham   Page 2 of 4 

 
6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Fiscal Policy Development   

1) Review Internal Controls (Placeholder)  
 

There was nothing to report.   
 
b. Rate Review  
 

1) Business License 
 

Mayor Ruby noted when the business license was put in place it was to find out who was in 
business, and was not intended to be a revenue generator.  The real revenue was the sales tax.  
 
Follow up: 

 How many business licenses have been filed? 
 What are other cities assessing?  

 
2) Animal Control Fees  

 
Discussion ensued: 

 Why cats have their own category and are not included in the category animals; 
 Suggest clarifying Euthanasia or request for; or request for suggests there would be a fee 

just for requesting if no follow through.  
 
MOTION: Alice Ruby moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to approve the 

proposed rates as presented.  
 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

 
3) Motor Vehicle Registration Tax 

 
a)  How Much is the City Collecting (Add 20%) 
 
Follow-up: 

 Bring back a new table which factors in a 20% increase across the board.  
 

c. Ambulance Fund – Resolution  
 

Manager Loera reported the Volunteer Fire Dept. Executive Committee recommended keeping 
the fund at $700,000 limit, to be used for building improvement and vehicle acquisition, and 
anything over could be used for needed supplies and equipment.   

 
Discussion ensued: 

 Understood the suggestion was to cap the fund and use the excess funds to support the 
dept. overall, and not just the equipment, however the use of the excess is their choice.      
 

 

Page 52 of 93



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  SEPTEMBER 22, 2015

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  September 22, 2015 
 City of Dillingham   Page 3 of 4 

 
Follow-up: 

 Manager to get with fire chief, and if okay with adding overall operations, resolution will 
indicate as such.  (Noted the fire chief provides input during the budget process.)  

 
MOTION: Alice Ruby moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to propose to the 

Fire Dept. Executive Committee that the funds be capped at $700,000 and the 
excess could be used for overall operations.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 

d. Clarify School Contribution Allocation in the Resolution Narrative  
 

Follow-up: 
 Staff to locate the language that was used in the ordinance when the referendum was 

passed to allocate a portion of the 6% sales tax to fund the schools; and 
 Provide a separate whereas that would reference the percentage of the sales tax that is 

allocated to school funding.   
 
e. Tobacco Tax (Postponed for now) 
 
f. Force Filing Update 

  
Manager Loera presented the following for information only, which was currently being vetted 
through the Code Review Committee:  

 goal was to adjust the fees to get people to fill out their property returns;  
 working on language to clarify if someone is late with their filing and the city hasn’t started 

the force filing process, they are assessed a late fee of $50.  Once the force filing 
process starts the person is charged a force filing fee of $100;  

 recommend second year would be a $250 force file;  
 recommend third year would trigger an audit, preferably by a third party; and    
 develop a formula to assess the property tax based on the number of days in Dillingham 

where the plane is registered in Dillingham, but stored outside of Dillingham a portion of 
the year.  

 
Discussion ensued: 

 For a future discussion could review if fishing vessels not stored year round in Dillingham 
aren’t also susceptible to a personal property tax when launched in Dillingham.   

 
Chair Liedberg departed the meeting at 7:03 p.m.  Mayor Ruby continued to chair the meeting. 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

 
There was no new business.  

 

 

Page 53 of 93



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  SEPTEMBER 22, 2015

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  September 22, 2015 
 City of Dillingham   Page 4 of 4 

 
8. PUBLIC/COMMITTEE COMMENT(S) 
 
There were no public or committee comments.  
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:09 p.m.   
   
 ____________________________ 
 Paul Liedberg, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 
 
 

 

Page 54 of 93



 

Page 55 of 93



 

Page 56 of 93



 

Page 57 of 93



 

 

Page 58 of 93



 

Page 59 of 93



 

Page 60 of 93



 

Page 61 of 93



 

 

Page 62 of 93



 

Page 63 of 93



 

Page 64 of 93



 

Page 65 of 93



 

Page 66 of 93



 

Page 67 of 93



 

Page 68 of 93



 

Page 69 of 93



 

 

Page 70 of 93



 

Page 71 of 93



 

Page 72 of 93



 

Page 73 of 93



 

Page 74 of 93



 

Page 75 of 93



 

Page 76 of 93



 

Page 77 of 93



 

Page 78 of 93



 

Page 79 of 93



 

Page 80 of 93



 

Page 81 of 93



 

Page 82 of 93



 

Page 83 of 93



 

Page 84 of 93



 

Page 85 of 93



 

Page 86 of 93



 

Page 87 of 93



 

Page 88 of 93



 

Page 89 of 93



 

 

Page 90 of 93



 

Page 91 of 93



 

Page 92 of 93



 

Page 93 of 93




